






From: MARY BENJAMIN  
Sent: Monday, May 6, 2024 11:30 AM
To: Todd Heidgerken <theidgerken@crwater.com>
Subject: water rates

water rates keep going up and up.  When does it stop,  You call it just a "few cents"
for the users but to a lot of us, we are on fixed incomes, and some people have to
work 2 or 3 jobs just to get by and those "few cents" increase matters.  I vote no for
an increase in the water rates.



May 15, 2024 Rate Hearing 

Proposed Water Rate Increase
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Prepared by: Christa Bosserman Wolfe, CPA
Wolfe Consulting, LLC



What Are We Going to Cover?

Water Rates Overview

Rate Drivers

Rates and Water System Improvements

Proposed Rate Increase & Components of Rates

Impacts and Value Recap



Water Rates Overview

CRW’s only source 
of income to 
maintain, upgrade 
and operate the 
water system are 
rates, grants, and 
SDC’s. There is no 
tax or assessment 
revenue.

Water rates are 
set to ensure that 
the system 
continues to 
operate, proving 
safe drinking 
water to our 
customers.

The Master Plan 
for repairing and 
upgrading our 
aging 
infrastructure has 
necessitated rate 
increases to keep 
pace with rising 
construction 
costs and 
inflation. 



Rate Drivers



What Things Drive the Rates Up or 
Down?

Planned projects

Inflation (price increases)

Labor and benefits costs

Policies

Construction costs

Unfunded government 
mandates

General economy

5



Water 
System
Improvement 
Drivers

• Age- How does the age 
of our water system 
components affect 
their ability to 
contribute to long-
term system health 
and function?

• Capacity- How will the 
system be able to 
meet current and 
future demands?

• Water Quality- How will 
the system be able to 
meet current and future 
water quality goals and 
requirements?

• Resilience- How will the 
system be able to meet 
hazard resilience goals 
and requirements?



Projects Being Funded

Approximately, $19M capital 

improvement plan through FY27 to 

address immediate needs, with 

additional projects beyond that horizon.



Balancing Rates & Projects

Planning and prioritization of system projects must fit 
within the available funding and budget.

Future water rates must provide enough funds to pay 
for projects and continue to meet all legal and 

regulatory requirements.



Proposed Rates



Proposed Rate Increase
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Approx. 5.5% increase 

9/1/24 and 9/1/25

CRW residential customers who use an 
average of 16 CCF (approximately 12,000 

gallons) over a two-month billing cycle will 
see an estimated increase of $6.40 ($3.20 per 
month) in the first year and $6.75 ($3.38 per 

month) in the second year.



Components of Rates

What are service charges?
Service charges are fixed charges applied to all customers regardless 
of consumption. These charges help maintain basic functions of water treatment, 
water distribution, customer service, infrastructure maintenance and fire 
prevention. These costs are also fixed for the district regardless of water 
production.

What are commodity charges?
 Commodity charges reflect the amount of water used by a customer over the 

billing period. Revenue generated from water usage also supports fixed charges. 
However, the rate structure is designed to promote conservation and responsible 
water usage by charging customers who use smaller amounts of water less 
money.



Proposed Fixed Rates
(Bi-Monthly Service Charge)

Proposed         

2024-2025

Proposed         

2025-2026

Meter Size (Inches)

Domestic Service                               

Current Charges

Service 

Charges

 Service 

Charges

Full 3/4 $64.25 67.78$             71.51$             

1 $88.39 93.25               98.38               

1 1/2 $126.30 133.25             140.58             

2 $174.17 183.75             193.86             

3 $272.34 287.32             303.12             

4 $418.95 441.99             466.30             

6 $785.19 828.38             873.94             

8 $1,774.66 1,872.27           1,975.24          

10 $2,791.85 2,945.40           3,107.40          

12 $3,373.09 3,558.61           3,754.33          

Bi-Monthly Service Charge for All Direct Service 

Customers



Proposed Volume Rates ($/CCF)
(Commodity Charges)

Volume (CCF)

Block 1 = 1-4 CCF 2.89$               3.05$               

Block 2 = 5-8 CCF 3.21$               3.38$               

Block 3 = 9-24 CCF 3.83$               4.04$               

Block 4 = 25 CCF & up 4.87$               5.14$               

$2.74

$3.04

$3.63

$4.62

Rate 

Rate Per 100 Cubic Feet (1-CCF) - 1 CCF = 748 Gallons    Single 

Family Dwelling (3/4 or 1"): Proposed Rate 

9/1/24

Proposed Rate 

9/1/25

Volume Rate

Block 1 = c $3.36 3.54$               3.74$               

Block 2 = d $4.20 4.43$               4.67$               

Proposed Rate 

9/1/24

Proposed Rate 

9/1/25

Multi-Family, Commercial & Industrial

c-Volume up to 1.5 times average winter consumption

d-Volume above 1.5 times average winter consumption

Average winter consumption: Total consumption (volume) recorded on a

customer's December and February bills divided by two for bi-monthly billing.



Rate Increase Effective 
September Billing Cycle

June 13, 2024  

Consider Adoption

Mid-May to Mid-July Commercial 
Consumption

Mid-June to Mid-Aug Residential Consumption

Mid-July to Mid-Sept Commercial 
Consumption

Mid-Aug to Mid-Oct Residential Consumption

Com. Bills July 
31 – Old Rate

Com. Bills Sept 
30 – New Rate

Res. Bills Aug 31 
– Old Rate

Res. Bills Oct 31 
– New Rate

May 15, 2024 

Rate Hearing 

Effective 1st bill after 
Sept 1st
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How Does CRW Compare Currently?
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Impacts and 
Value

❑ Estimated Average Bi-
Month bill increase (approx. 
$6.40 & $6.75).

❑ CRW does not receive tax 
dollars for operations. 

❑ Rate increases funds 
improvements and routine 
maintenance to provide safe 
drinking water to approx. 
12,300 customers.

❑ Recommended rate 
supports responsible 
planning for current and 
future needs.

❑ Proactive rate planning 
and financial forecasting 
promotes long term 
system reliability and 
resilience.

❑ This balanced approach 
allows CRW to:

✓ Meet fluctuating operating 
costs.

✓ Progress in addressing 
identified needs.

✓ Implement improvements 
necessary for larger-scale 
future projects.



Questions?

Christa Bosserman Wolfe, CPA

503-704-2728

cwolfe@crwater.com

christa@wcportland.com
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Board Meeting –May 15, 2024 
Ted Ebora

Clackamas River Water

3rd Quarter Update – Fiscal Year 2024



Biennium (BN) 2023-2025

2

Beginning of Year 1 of the Biennium

July 1, 2023-June 30, 2025

1st Quarter of the Biennium – 12.5% 

September 30, 2023

2nd Quarter of the Biennium – 25%

December 31, 2023

3rd Quarter of the Biennium – 37.5%

March 31, 2024



General Fund 
Budget to Actual Status 

Revenues tracking slightly higher than 
anticipated (43.5% vs 37.5%) to date.  Drivers:

Water Service varies seasonally

Interest Earnings (LGIP rate 5.2%)

Expenses tracking slightly lower than anticipated (30.2% vs 37.5%)

Personnel savings due to vacant positions in Water Resources, FACS, and Operations (28.5% vs 
37.5%).

Material & services are tracking closely to the budget at 34.4%. This will be impacted by water 
purchase related to the WTP project.

Capital outlay spending is at 31.8% spent with different scheduled deliveries in the remaining 
months of the biennium. 



Capital 
Improvement 
Projects Fund

Budget to 
Actual Status

• 27.5% spent 
through 3rd  
quarter.

• Increased activity 
in the WTP Valve 
Replacement and 
the Maple Lane 
Waterline project.

• Progress reports 
are provided to the 
Board as part of 
the Monthly 
Report.
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System 
Development 
Charge Reserve 
Fund
Budget to Actuals

• 44.0% SDC revenue from new 
construction received to date

• Interest earnings trending 
higher than budgeted due to 
current rates and a higher 
balance.
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Questions?
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Purchase Order Report- April 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monthly Update 
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Contract Log 

(Executed since last board meeting April 11, 2024) 
 

Company Product / Service Rates Eff. Date Exp. Date New/Amended/ Extended 

City Wide Facility 
Solutions 

Janitorial Services & 
Supplies 

 
NTE $82,000 

 
4/1/24 

 
3/31/25 

New. Approved by the Board in 
April 

Professional Credit 
Services 

 
Debt Collection 

  
10/1/12 

 
4/1/26 

 
Extended 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 

 

Summary of Legal  

                                                                                                                                 April 2024   
Harrang Long Gary Rudnick monthly retainer $  4,600.00  

Harrang Long Gary Rudnick work outside of retainer/Client Cost $  1,294.92   

Sub-contracted legal services $__     ____  

Total Legal $  5,894.92 

 

 

Public Records Request Received 

Number of Records Requests Received in April 2024                                        0 
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Financial Activity 

 

 

1) SDC revenue picked up a few applications in April. 2) Interest Other Fund revenue is higher primarily due to increasing 

interest rates and a higher account balance. 3) CIP expenditure is high due to increased activity in the Valve Replacement 

project, Maple Lane Rd Waterline project, Redland Rd Water Line Phase 1 & 2. 4) There are no costs for CIP Bond or CRWSC 

as those funds have been closed out but will be reported in the 5-year graph. 4) GF-Capital Outlay is higher than in prior 

years due to purchased equipment and equipment purchased related to the WTP project. 

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Debt Services $1,686,275 $1,695,400 $807,150 $815,850 $1,238,300

CRWSC Activity $681,475 $748,706 $693,308 $0 $0

CIP Bond Construction $3,935,319 $79,025 $0 $0 $0

CIP Expenditures $94,117 $73,796 $48,635 $357,565 $2,940,205

GF-Capital Outlay $289,925 $662,589 $380,059 $730,768 $871,193

GF-Materials & Services $3,012,202 $3,060,957 $3,252,529 $3,665,419 $4,120,340

GF-Personnel Services $4,527,988 $4,122,086 $3,994,000 $4,468,555 $4,380,313

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

In
 $

Expenditures through April

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

Other General Fund $332,921 $353,486 $525,436 $588,727 $574,941

CRWSC Revenue $172,076 $55,877 $36,172 $0 $0

SDC $447,874 $882,853 $573,587 $118,155 $130,722

Interest Other Funds $95,071 $80,672 $65,751 $164,892 $978,085

Water Revenue $11,077,765 $11,546,611 $12,878,514 $13,309,151 $13,284,480

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

Revenue through April
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Statistics 

   (as of the end of April 2024) 
Residential Customers are billed on even months, Commercial Customers are billed on odd months.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cash/Check – Received via Lockbox, Counter  
Credit Card – Received via CRW Initiated Automatic Payment, Walk-ins/Phone Calls, and Website 
Electronic Funds Transfer – Received via Bank-to-Bank Transfer, Automatic Checking Withdrawal (RapidPay) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Reminder Phone Calls are made during the even months. Shut offs occur the following month. **Jan/Feb late notice number 
is an estimate *No late notices Sept-Dec. ’20; reinstated February and sent in May 2021  
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Activity Reports 

                                                (as of the end of April 2024) 
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New Services Meter Installations
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Replacement Meter Installations

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

No new services for Sept. FY21, April F22, Sept. FY 22, Sept. FY 23, Jan FY23, Oct. FY24, Jan FY24, Feb FY24 

 
Annual 2024 Goal for Meter Replacement is 350- Year to date is 183. 
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System Operations & Engineering 
Operation Statistics  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Leak 
Repairs 
Made  

(all pipe 
sizes) 

Leak 
Detection 

Completed 
(miles) 

Hydrant 
Maintenance 

Locate 
Requests 

Valve 
Maintenance 
& Mapping 

After-
hours 

Callouts 

Meter 
Maintenance 

Tasks 

Cross 
Connection 
Inspections 

Jan. 2024 3 0 38 311 4 28 60 5 

Feb. 2024 0 0 109 340 116 3 0 13 

Mar. 2024 1 0 4 397 7 3 86 16 

April 2024 0 0.0 91 483 18 3 0 0 

May 2024         

June 2024         

July 2024         

Aug. 2024         

Sep. 2024         

Oct. 2024         

Nov. 2024         

Dec. 2024         

Total to 
Date 

4 0 242 1531 145 37 146 34 

2024 
Annual 
Goal 

N/A N/A 905      N/A 600 N/A N/A        96 

Note - Annual maintenance goals are established based on several criteria including; AWWA Best Management Practices, 
identified system priority maintenance and repair focus needs, and internal/external project forecasts. 
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Project Updates  

Private Development Projects                                                                                 

Private Project Tracking – April 2024 

Project 
No. 

Name Description Phase Status 

20-5262 
Private 

Bonaventure 
Senior Living 

6” fire service and 3” 
meter 

Const. Site construction ongoing. 

21-5285 
Private 

130th Industrial 
Park 

3-fire services 
3-commercial services 

Const. Complete. 

21-5289 
Private 

224 Logistics 
Center 

Unified Grocer site; 4 
fire & 4 Domestic 
Services 

Const. Construction underway. 

22-5295 
Private 

Jannsen Multi-
Family 

New fire and domestic 
service for 8-plex 
development. 

Const. Awaiting construction start. 

22-5298 
Private 

Serres Farms 
Subdivision 

7-lot of subdivision Design Design review underway. 

23-5299 
Private 

Prologis Park 
Clackamas 

4-Warehouses with 
Fire and domestic 
service 

Const. 
First phase - Public ROW 
preconstruction meeting was held. 
Construction this summer. 
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Project Updates 

 

Capital Project Status Report – April 2024    

Project No. Name 
Project 
Budget  

Spent to Date 
 Remaining 

Project Budget  
Project Status                                    

5301 Trans/CRW Impact Projects $250,000  $7,087 $242,913   

Utility coordination and adjustments at: Johnson Cr. Blvd at 79th Place Signals; ODOT 82nd Ave., Webster Rd. 

5303 82nd Dr. Waterline Phase 2 $1,041,000  $66,689 $974,911 In Design  

Design consultant progressing. Potholing existing utilities.  

5291 I-205 Crossings:  $1,119,000 $92,904 $1,026,096 In Design 

Design consultant progressing. 

5306 Redland Rd. Waterline Phase 2 $1,355,000 $577,548 $777,452 Construction 

Piping and services are complete. Scheduling surface restoration.  

5307 Redland Rd. PRV $1,003,000 $6,268 $996,732 In Design 

Design underway. Survey in progress.  

5308 Low Lift PS Improvements $749,000 $0 $749,000 No Activity 

No Activity. 

5309 WTP Structural Improvements $1,000,000 $105,265 $894,735 Construction 

Construction during valve replacement ongoing. 

5273 Redland Rd. Waterline Phase 1 $666,000  $356,994 $309,006 Construction 

Waterline in service Construction punch list underway. 

5270 Linwood Road Improvements $210,000  $98,748  $111,252   Construction 

Construction is ongoing. CRW is coordinating service replacement work with the County and Contractor. 

5278 Monroe Street Improvements $850,000  $49,221 $800,779 In Design  

Design at 90% complete. Preparing IGA with Clackamas Co. for construction tentative start summer of 2024. 

5280 Pump Station Chlorine $142,000  $2,706 $139,294  In Design  

Design at 30% complete. 

5281 WTP Polymer Feed System  $252,000  $938 $251,062 In Design  

Designing space and layout of proposed feed system on first floor of WTP. 

5282 WTP Filter Valve Replacement $1,302,000  $854,347 $447,653  Construction 

Valve installation nearing completion. 

5305 
Webster Improvement at 
Bilquist  School 

$0 $15,812 ($15,812)  In Design 

Preparing plan for service adjustments prior to Clackamas Co. Road project. 

5292 
Johnson Creek Blvd 
Improvements 

$0 $57 ($57) In Design 

Coordinating utility conflicts for Clackamas County road improvements. 

5312 Thiessen Rd. Culvert Crossing $0 $0 $0 In Design 

Coordinating 8” waterline relocation to accommodate Clackamas County culvert replacement. 
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Water Distribution Charts   

(as of the end of April 2024) 
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*March & April 2024 Data includes water purchased from NCCWC during WTP Shutdown  

 

*March & April 2024 Data includes water purchased from NCCWC during WTP Shutdown  
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Sampling Reports 

                                                                                                                                            (as of the end of April 2024) 

 
Regulatory 

All 73 samples collected and analyzed for the April monitoring period showed no presence of coliform/E. 

coli bacteria. 

Quarterly Disinfection By-Product sampling was conducted at 4 locations in the North Service Area and 4 

locations in the South Service Area distribution systems. 

 

Non-Regulatory 

General water quality parameters (pH, temperature, chlorine, TDS, hardness, alkalinity) were collected for 

the distribution system at 16 locations in the North and South systems. 

 

Monthly watershed sampling was conducted at 3 long-term sampling locations for total organic carbon, 

nutrients (nitrate/nitrite, total phosphorus, orthophosphate, etc), coliform density, pH, dissolved oxygen, 

TDS, temperature, and volatile organic carbon compounds (VOCs, 21 regulated for drinking water, 36 

unregulated).  
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Winter Conditions Reports                                                                                                                                                                              

• As of May 08, 2024, the Clackamas basin snowpack was 158% of median.  
• April precipitation in the Clackamas basin was 54% of normal. Precipitation since the beginning of the water year 
(October 1 – May 7) has been 105% of normal.  
• The three-month outlook (May-Jul) from the NOAA Climate Prediction Center shows above normal 
temperatures likely for Oregon, and a slightly elevated chance of below normal precipitation for Northern 
Oregon. 
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